
 

 

     Ffôn/Tel: 01656 643643                                                   Facs/Fax: 01656 668126          Ebost/Email: talktous@bridgend.gov.uk                                                                                  

     Negeseuon SMS/ SMS Messaging: 07581 157014           Twitter@bridgendCBC              Gwefan/Website: www.bridgend.gov.uk 

Cyfnewid testun: Rhowch 18001 o flaen unrhyw un o’n rhifau ffon ar gyfer y gwasanaeth trosglwyddo testun 

Text relay: Put 18001 before any of our phone numbers for the text relay service 

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg. Rhowch wybod i ni os yw eich dewis iaith yw’r Gymraeg  
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please let us know if your language choice is Welsh 

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. 
Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich 

dewis iaith. 
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 
let us know if your language choice is Welsh. 

 

Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief 
Executive’s Directorate  
Deialu uniongyrchol / 01656 643148 / 643147 / 
643694 
Gofynnwch am / Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
 
Ein cyf / Our ref:       
Eich cyf / Your ref:       
 
Dyddiad/Date: Dydd Gwener, 17 Chwefror 2023 

 

Annwyl Cynghorydd,  
 
 PWYLLGOR GWASANAETHAU DEMOCRATAIDD 
 
Cynhelir Cyfarfod  Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd cyfarfod hybrid yn Siambr y Cyngor, 
Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd yr Angel, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr  ar Dydd Iau, 23 Chwefror 2023 am 
10:00. 
 
AGENDA 
 
1.  Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb    

 Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Aelodau. 
 

2.  Datganiadau o fuddiant    

 Derbyn datganiadau o ddiddordeb personol a rhagfarnol (os o gwbl) gan Aelodau / 
Swyddogion yn unol â darpariaethau'r Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau a fabwysiadwyd gan y 
Cyngor o 1 Medi 2008.  
 

3.  Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion   3 - 6 

 I dderbyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cofnodion cyfarfod y 20/10/2022 
 

4.  Diweddariad ar y Llwyfan Digidol a'r Porth Aelodau  
 

7 - 16 

5.  Templed Adroddiad Corfforaethol Diwygiedig  
 

17 - 32 

6.  Rhaglen Gwaith i'r Dyfodol y Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd  
 

33 - 38 

7.  Materion Brys    

 I ystyried unrhyw eitemau o fusnes y, oherwydd amgylchiadau arbennig y cadeirydd o'r farn 
y dylid eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod fel mater o frys yn unol â Rhan 4 (pharagraff 4) o'r 
Rheolau Trefn y Cyngor yn y Cyfansoddiad.   
 

Nodyn:  Bydd hwn yn gyfarfod Hybrid a bydd Aelodau a Swyddogion mynychu trwy Siambr y 
Cyngor, Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd yr Angel, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr / o bell Trwy Timau Microsoft. 
Bydd y cyfarfod cael ei recordio i’w drosglwyddo drwy wefan y Cyngor.  Os oes gennych unrhyw 
gwestiwn am hyn, cysylltwch â cabinet_committee@bridgend.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01656 643147 / 
643148. 

Public Document Pack

mailto:talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


 
Yn ddiffuant 
K Watson 
Prif Swyddog, Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddio, AD a Pholisi Corfforaethol 
 
Dosbarthiad: 
 
Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr 
S Easterbrook 
P Ford 
RM Granville 
D T Harrison 

M L Hughes 
RM James 
R J Smith 
I M Spiller 

T Thomas 
G Walter 
E D Winstanley 



PWYLLGOR GWASANAETHAU DEMOCRATAIDD - DYDD IAU, 20 HYDREF 2022 

 

1 

 
COFNODION CYFARFOD Y PWYLLGOR GWASANAETHAU DEMOCRATAIDD A 
GYNHALIWYD YN O BELL TRWY MICROSOFT TEAMS DYDD IAU, 20 HYDREF 2022, AM 
10:00 

 
Presennol 

 
Y Cynghorydd T Thomas – Cadeirydd  

 
P Ford RM Granville D T Harrison M L Hughes 
RM James R J Smith G Walter  

 
Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb 
 
S Aspey, I M Spiller a/ac E D Winstanley 
 
Swyddogion: 
 
Rachel Keepins 
Nimi Chandrasena 
 

Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
Swyddogion Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 

6. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT 
 
Dim 

 
7. CYMERADWYAETH COFNODION 

 
PENDERFYNWYD: Cymeradwyo cofnodion cyfarfod o'r Pwyllgor 

Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a gynhaliwyd ar 
07/07/2022 fel cofnod gwir a chywir. 

 
8. RHAGLENNI SEFYDLU A DATBLYGU AELODAU 

 
Cyflwynodd Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd (DSM) yr adroddiad i'r pwyllgor. 
Dywedodd y Cadeirydd ei fod wedi gofyn am adborth gan ei grŵp ynglŷn â'r cyfnod 
sefydlu, a rhannodd fod yr Aelodau wedi dweud wrtho eu bod wedi gweld profiad y 
farchnad yn ddefnyddiol iddynt. 
Codwyd mater presenoldeb cyfnewidiol aelodau yn y sesiynau datblygu ac awgrymodd y 
cadeirydd y dylid ailedrych ar yr amserau y cynhelir hyfforddiant arnynt a chynigiodd 
gynnal arolwg. Cadarnhaodd Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd fod arolwg ar 
Ddatblygiad Aelodau wedi cael ei amserlennu eisoes. 
Rhoddodd aelod o'r pwyllgor adborth am ddigwyddiad y Farchnad a gwnaeth 
awgrymiadau ar gyfer gwella digwyddiadau a hyfforddiant o'r fath yn y dyfodol. 
Cafwyd trafodaeth rhwng Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd ac aelodau eraill 
ynghylch y modd y cynhelir hyfforddiant, gydag awgrymiadau ar gyfer gwella. 
 
Dywedodd Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd, gyda golwg ar y sylwadau a wnaed 
gan Aelodau ynghylch y rhaglen waith i'r dyfodol, y bu sôn y câi Aelodau adroddiad ar 
Borth y Cynghorwyr. Roeddent yn ceisio cael y data ond nid oedd ar gael ar hyn o bryd. 
Roedd tîm y porth drwy'r tîm Gwasanaethau Cwsmeriaid a TGCh yn cael trafferth i 
ddarparu'r data. 
 
Sicrhaodd Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd yr Aelodau eu bod yn dilyn y mater 
a bod Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Partneriaeth wedi ei sicrhau y byddent yn ceisio 
gwneud yn siŵr bod yr adroddiad ar gael mewn pryd ar gyfer y cyfarfod nesaf ym mis 
Chwefror 2023. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



PWYLLGOR GWASANAETHAU DEMOCRATAIDD - DYDD IAU, 20 HYDREF 2022 

 

2 

 
Dywedodd Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd y cafwyd cynnig yn un o'r 
cyfarfodydd, yr oedd rhai Aelodau efallai wedi ei fynychu, i gael gweithgor o aelodau i 
edrych ar y porth a rhoi prawf ar y gwahanol gamau, gan ei fod yn dal i gael ei ddatblygu 
a bod angen monitro. Soniodd ei bod wedi awgrymu i Bennaeth y Gwasanaethau 
Partneriaeth a'r Rheolwr Grŵp – Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd y gallai'r 
gweithgor gael ei gynrychioli gan aelodau Pwyllgor y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd. 
Yna cafwyd trafodaeth rhwng yr aelodau ynglŷn â'r ffordd orau i symud y cynnig hwn yn 
ei flaen.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD : Bod y pwyllgor yn nodi’r adroddiad a’r atodiadau. 
 
Cytunodd y pwyllgor i nodi pynciau ychwanegol ar gyfer Datblygu Aelodau i'w cynnwys 
a'u blaenoriaethu yn y cynllun datblygu cyffredinol. 
 
Gofynnodd y Pwyllgor y canlynol: 

• Bod arolwg yr Aelodau yn gofyn am farn ynghylch amseriad y sesiynau Datblygu 
Aelodau hyn yn ogystal â phriodoldeb yr hyfforddiant hyd yma, hygyrchedd ac 
unrhyw fylchau posibl; 

• Byddai cael digwyddiad y Farchnad yn gynt yn ddefnyddiol yn dilyn etholiadau yn 
y dyfodol; 

• Ystyried technegau a dulliau amrywiol o hyfforddi i annog yr Aelodau i gymryd 
rhan; 

• Ystyried Cadeiryddion ar gyfer yr holl hyfforddiant i sicrhau strwythur i'r sesiwn a 
chadw'r Aelodau ar y trywydd iawn; 

• Bod Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd yn edrych i weld a oes modd 
monitro pan fydd cofnodion sesiynau hyfforddi wedi cael eu gwylio ar gyfer y 
rheiny nad ydynt efallai'n gallu mynychu'r sesiwn ei hun. 

 
9. ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL DRAFFT PANEL ANNIBYNNOL CYMRU AR 

GYDNABYDDIAETH ARIANNOL 2023/24 
 
Cyflwynodd Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd yr adroddiad a chrynhoi'r pwyntiau 
i'r pwyllgor. 
Bu’r Cadeirydd ac aelodau eraill yn trafod eu pryderon ynghylch cynnwys yr adroddiad, 
yn enwedig gyda golwg ar y cynnydd arfaethedig mewn cyflog i Aelodau a'r argraff y 
gallai hyn ei gadael ar eu hetholwyr yng ngoleuni’r argyfwng costau byw.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD :  Bod y Pwyllgor yn nodi’r adroddiad a’r atodiadau. 

                         Cytunodd y Pwyllgor i ddarparu'r ymateb a ganlyn, mewn 
perthynas ag Adroddiad Blynyddol Drafft IRPW 2023-2024, i’r 
IRPW a CLlLC i’w gyflwyno erbyn y 1af o Ragfyr 2022: 

 
‘Mae’r Pwyllgor yn cydnabod, o ystyried yr argyfwng costau byw 
a’r anawsterau di-ddadl y mae llawer o bobl yn y Fwrdeistref Sirol 
yn eu profi ar hyn o bryd ac yn debygol o’u profi yn y dyfodol agos, 
ei bod yn ymddangos braidd yn amhriodol i Aelodau Etholedig 
gael codiadau cyflog ar gyfer 2023-2024. Fodd bynnag, derbynnir 
hefyd fod angen ystyried amgylchiadau personol Aelodau ac felly 
y dylai fod yn fater personol i’r Aelodau benderfynu drostynt eu 
hunain a fyddant yn derbyn y codiad cyflog ynteu’n dewis peidio.’ 

 
10. MATERION BRYS 

 
Dim 
 

Page 4



PWYLLGOR GWASANAETHAU DEMOCRATAIDD - DYDD IAU, 20 HYDREF 2022 

 

3 

Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 10:50 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 

23 FEBRUARY 2023 
 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF OFFICER - FINANCE, PERFORMANCE AND CHANGE 
 

UPDATE ON THE DIGITAL PLATFORM AND MEMBER PORTAL 
 
1. Purpose of report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Committee with the background and 

update for the implementation of the digital platform and member portal. 
 

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives/other corporate priorities 
 

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being objectives 
under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 

 

 Supporting a successful sustainable economy – taking steps to make the 
county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study 
and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focussed on raising the skills, 
qualifications and ambitions for all people in the county borough.  

 

 Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient - taking 
steps to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on 
the Council and its services.  Supporting individuals and communities to build 
resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to have active, healthy and 
independent lives. 
 

 Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community that 
can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. 

 
3. Background 
 
3.1 The Authority’s Digital Strategy includes 3 themes - “Digital Citizen”, “Digital Council” 

and “Digital Place”.  The Digital Council theme focuses on evaluating current business 
processes and establishing how we can fundamentally change the way of working, 
redesigning services to better services for a 24/7 digital citizen.  

 
One of the aims within the Digital Strategy is to streamline routine and repetitive 
processes, delivering end-to-end connections to back-office systems with the 
ambition of delivering efficiencies. 

 
The Council’s Digital Principles have been developed to underpin the foundations of 
the Five Ways of Working within the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015, aligning a “Digital First” approach, and encapsulating the good practice 
principles identified by Society of Information Technology Management (SocITM).  
Digital services will therefore: 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 
 

 

 Be designed around the people who are going to use them, across the whole 
sphere of service delivery 
 

 Be integrated where possible to deliver seamless connectivity and be simple and 
intuitive so that the user experience is positive, right first time and able to move 
easily between functions 
 

 Be designed to safely and usefully share information, to better support the most 
vulnerable in our communities, and to target our limited resources more effectively 
based on demand 
 

 Demonstrate digital leadership, creating the conditions for genuine channel shift  
 

 Rise above traditional ways of working and challenge the status quo to ensure we 
are working smarter  

 
3.2 Digital Platform 
 
3.2.1 During 2016 the Council embarked on a Digital Transformation Programme that had 

a citizen-centric focus. The aim of this programme was to introduce a single digital 
platform (My Account) to allow citizens to interact online with key council services.  In 
order to enable this outcome, it was necessary to procure a digital platform to form 
the basis of this citizen centred approach.   

 
3.2.2 In March 2020, the digital provider notified Bridgend County Borough Council (BCBC) 

that they were ceasing to support their platform in March 2021, therefore the Council 
had to look for an alternative solution.  

 
3.2.3 The COVID-19 pandemic as well as the pending contract expiry in March 2021 of the 

current platform, along with the lessons learnt from the previous 3 years were the key 
drivers in assessing the market and procuring a chosen supplier to work with BCBC 
to develop the digital capabilities over the next 3 years. 
 
Following a G-Cloud procurement exercise that was conducted, which included a 
demonstration of various solutions, the supplier that was chosen was Granicus. 
 

3.3 Councillor Portal 
 
3.3.1 A review was carried out in 2019 on the previous member referral system.  Feedback 

was obtained through an engagement process involving key stakeholders inclusive 
of Members, Democratic Services and officers.  This resulted in 17 recommendations 
and included issues such as the need to review Service Level Agreements (SLA), 
development of a system to capture key information, and the requirement for updated 
member guidelines. 
 

3.3.2 An action plan was developed in line with the Digital Strategy’s aims and objectives.  
The Strategy outlined the actions which included the need to re-engineer the member 
referral process and to develop an efficient solution. 

 

Page 8



 
 

3.3.3 Following the procurement of Granicus’ digital platform in April 2020, which included 
the councillor portal, it was decided that the member’s referral process would be 
revisited. 
 

3.3.4 The Granicus solution enables Members to login into a dedicated portal on the 
govService platform and submit referrals using a user friendly form.  Members are 
able to track and search live and archived cases.  Referrals are logged on a form, 
accessed via the portal and received and actioned by the relevant service areas via 
the Staff Portal (Dash). 
 
As well as streamlining the current member referral process, further additional 
benefits of the councillor portal included: 
 

 Live feeds of the corporate Facebook and Twitter accounts 

 Map showing live data for all current and upcoming roadworks 

 A direct link to search Planning Applications 

 The South Wales area crime map and links to key Police Information 
 

3.3.5 Significant work was undertaken with both Democratic Services and Elected 
Members to develop the member referral process within the portal, including 
redesigning the process maps.   

 
3.3.6 Following the initial testing with Democratic Services and Social Services, a pilot 

group of Members was identified to trial and test the new form and process, ahead of 
the system going live following the local elections in May 2022. 

 
4. Current situation/proposal 
 
4.1 Digital Platform 
 
4.1.1 The current digital platform was launched at the end of March 2021. To date, 45,605 

users have created an online account. 
 
4.1.2 There are 105 forms available via the digital platform. Since May 2022 to February 

2023 there have been 89,589 transactions.  The table below represents a variety of 
forms for services and the number of transactions: 

 

Form Transactions 

My Profile (Citizen self service – personal details etc.) 20,503 

Welsh Government Fuel Support Scheme 17,874 

Cost of living applications  15,804 

Contact Us 4,548 

Member “Referrals” and “Report It” 4,085 

Support Payment for Unpaid Carers 3,552 

Pest Control 2,813 

Road or Pavement Issue. 2,435 

Nursery admission 1,650 

Secondary school admission 1,644 

Pupil Development Grant 2022-23 1,612 

Primary school admission  1,273 

Page 9



 
 

Fly-tipping 1,261 

Free school meals application 913 

Green areas on roads or pavements old 798 

Flooding, Drainage and Watercourses 705 

Report a damaged or faulty streetlight. 557 

Residential parking permit 147 

Abandoned Vehicle 131 

Memorial bench, plaque or tree 38 

Total 82,343 

 
4.1.3 When completing an online form, users are provided the option of rating their 

experience out of five. To date, the Council has received 13,218 ratings, with an 
overall average rating of 4.5/5. 

 
4.1.4 Since 2019 there has been a shift in demand across the various contact channels. 

Whilst the telephone channel has always been the most popular, it is evident from 
the chart below that since the pandemic, more customers are going online to access 
Council services. 

 

 
 

Since April 2022, the average number of online transactions for some of the key 
services is shown below: 

 

Service Average online 
transactions per month 

Council tax payments 2,828 

Council tax online transactions 912 

Blue badge applications (new and renewals) 169 

Page 10



 
 

 
4.1.5 Despite the growth of the digital channel, the Council has specifically kept all 

channels open and accessible so as not to exclude any resident from accessing 
services and therefore mitigating the potential effects of digital exclusion.   

 
4.1.6 The additionality of the digital channel supports a self service / self help opportunity 

for the residents of Bridgend.  This creates a sustainable innovative approach working 
in collaboration with the residents of the borough making best use of the Council’s 
resources. 

 
4.2 Councillor Portal 
 
4.2.1 Ahead of launch of the new member portal, all staff within the various service areas 

were trained.  In total 177 staff were trained in the use of the system and ongoing 
support is being provided to them as the system continues to be developed. 

 
4.2.2 As at May 2022, 2,000 referrals were still open / unanswered on the previous system, 

linked to outgoing Councillors.  Since launching the new member referral portal in 
May 2022, there has been aggregate total of 4,085 referrals and “report it" logged on 
the digital platform.  This has been an unprecedented increase in comparison to 
previous years - for the year 2021/2022, a total of 3,500 referrals were logged by 
Members.  

 
4.2.3 The tables  below outline the position statement for “referrals” and “report it” since 

May 2022 to February 2023 raised by Councillors.   
 
 “Member Referrals”  
 

Total 
Referrals 

Closed 
Referrals 

Open Referrals 
with Service 

2,553 1,593 960 

 
“Report it”  

 

Total “Report 
it” 

Closed 
“Report it” Open “Report it” 

1,533 1,287 246 

 
4.2.4 When completing an online member referral form, Members are also given the option 

of rating their experience out of 5.  To date, 641 ratings have been received from 
Members with an overall average rating of 4.5/5.   

 
The table below shows the number of ratings received since May 2022, followed by 
a chart showing the average rating each month. 

 

Star rating No. of ratings 

⭐⭐⭐⭐⭐ 480 

⭐⭐⭐⭐ 75 

⭐⭐⭐ 35 

⭐⭐ 11 

Page 11



 
 

⭐ 40 

 
Below is a chart showing the average ratings per month since the new member 
referral online form has been launched.  You will see that when it was launched, the 
average rating was 4/5 and has risen to 4.9/5 in January 2023. 

 

 
 
4.2.5 The launch of the members portal has not been without its challenges against a 

backdrop of unprecedented demand. These challenges have been around response 
time for referrals and poor narrative responses from the “report it” function.  
Development continues to be made to the member portal with regards the narrative 
for the “report it” function alongside the alignment of capacity within services with a 
focus on managing the response rate of referrals.  This continuous improvement 
approach for the members portal is focused on a partnership approach with both 
officers and Members working together.  A group is soon to be established consisting 
of key stakeholders as per the request of the Group Leaders to undertake a review 
and develop a programme of works to further develop the members portal.  There is 
a commitment from Corporate Management Board (CMB) and services to continually 
develop and leverage the benefits that the digital platform offers.  These efficiencies 
support the ethos of information availability and self service enabling better use of the 
Council’s scarce resources. 

 
4.2.6 Utilising the digital platform for both Members and the public to report issues has 

enabled the Council to review its operational models of work within some service 
areas.  For example, the waste and recycling team embraced the new way of working 
by using the new system.  A new digital system was introduced where operatives 
were given tablets to receive all fly-tipping, litter, abandoned vehicles and other waste 
issue reports.  This has led to the team working more efficiently, as well as reducing 
the need to produce paper work tickets and unnecessary administrative tasks.  This 
is a true example of end of end integration based around the digital platform. 

 

3.6

3.8

4.0

4.2

4.4

4.6

4.8

5.0

May-22
Average

Jun-22
Average

Jul-22
Average

Aug-22
Average

Sep-22
Average

Oct-22
Average

Nov-22
Average

Dec-22
Average

Jan-23
Average

Member referral rating

Page 12



 
 

 
 
4.2.7 Currently work is ongoing with regards the member portal alongside engagement with 

service areas, to enhance the current iteration.  Future development of the member 
portal will include: 

 

 Establishing a Review / Steering Group 

 Developing a reporting tool and dashboards 

 Exploring the feasibility of integration with Modern.Gov to display all Committee 
meetings within the portal 

 Exploring the feasibility of integrating the Councillor portal with Microsoft Outlook 
 
4.3 Citizen feedback on developing digital services 
 
4.3.1 In the latest ‘Shaping Bridgend’s Future budget consultation exercise undertaken 

between 19 December and 22 January 2023, 1,441 interactions were received in 
total.  A total of 747 provided a response in relation to their age with 53% of 
respondents being aged 55 and over.  The split of respondents by age are shown 
below: 

 

Age category No. respondents 

18-24 7 (1%) 

25-34 69 (9%) 

35-44 125 (17%) 

45-54 146 (19%) 

55-64 191 (26%) 

65-74 134 (18%) 

75+ 64 (9%) 

Prefer not to say 11 (1%) 

 
As part of the consultation, questions were asked to seek views around the 
digitalisation of Council services, and the following responses were received: 

 

Page 13



 
 

 Out of a total 1,009 responses 805 respondents (80%) agreed with the ongoing 
development of online services 

 

 Out of total of 1,009 responses 806 respondents (80%) said they, or someone on 
their behalf, had accessed online Council services in the past 12 months 

 

 Out of a total of 985 responses 867 respondents (88%) stated they will continue 
to access services online 

 

 In response to the key benefits of accessing services online: 
 786 respondents stated it was convenient – ability to access services 24/7/365 
 498 respondents stated access was quicker and instant 
 395 respondents stated they preferred self service 

 
4.3.2 These survey results highlight the use made by, and benefit to, our residents.  The 

Council will continue to review work processes and forms to ensure that the public 
who wish to use this channel are able to access our services and raise issues through 
the digital platform.  

 
 
5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 There is no effect upon the policy framework or procedure rules arising from this 

report. 
 

6. Equality Act 2010 implications  
 
6.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty 

and the impact on the use of the Welsh language have been considered in the 
preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales, the Council must consider the 
impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions.  It is considered that there will be no significant or 
unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report.  

 
7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 
7.1 The below details how this report aligns to one or more of the 5 ways of working and 

7 Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act goals: 
 

Involvement Consultation results have underpinned the residents’ need 
to provide more online services 

Long Term To provide an improved, consistent and sustainable 
customer experience 

Prevention Developing online solutions and encouraging and promoting 
self-service will prevent problems from occurring and build 
a sustainable service.  Also by developing digital solutions 
with front line service needs, prevents future problems and 
utilises smarter resourcing 

Integration A single entry point into the Council with end-to-end  
integration to back office systems 

Collaboration Collaborating with Business Managers and key services to 
enrich the customers experience 

Page 14



 
 

 

A prosperous Wales Supporting a successful and sustainable economy and 
smarter use of resources  

A resilient Wales Smarter use of resources 

A healthier Wales Supporting a successful and sustainable economy, helping 
people and communities to be more healthy and resilient 
and smarter use of resources 

A Wales of vibrant 
culture and thriving 
Welsh language 

Supporting a successful and sustainable economy and 
helping people and communities to be more healthy and 
resilient 

A more equal Wales Supporting a successful and sustainable economy, helping 
people and communities to be more healthy and resilient 
and smarter use of resources 

A Wales of 
Cohesive 
communities 

Supporting a successful and sustainable economy, helping 
people and communities to be more healthy and resilient 
and smarter use of resources 

A globally 
responsive Wales 

Supporting a successful and sustainable economy and 
smarter use of resources 

 
8. Financial implications 
 
8.1 The ongoing annual cost of the digital platform and Councillor portal is shown below 

and is funded from ICT’s core budget: 
 
 
 

System Ongoing annual cost 

Forms / Self and Staff portals / Integration Manager / 
Workflow 

£20,500 

Single sign-on for Revenues and Benefits £5,500 

Service Designer / Customer Portal / Staff Portal / Payment 
Connector 

£15,500 

Service – additional Customer Service Advisor licenses £6,500 

Calendar bookings £7,000 

Systems Polling Service £5,000 

Councillor Portal £3,500 

 £63,500 

 
8.2 There will be no initial savings resulting from the implementing of the new digital 

platform, however there will be potential saving of staff time achieved in individual 
services areas as the digital channel is further developed and processes streamlined. 

 
9. Recommendation 
 
9.1 It is recommended that the Democratic Services Committee consider the report with 

regards the development of the digital platform, including the member portal. 
 
 

Carys Lord 
Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and Change 
23 February 2023 

Page 15



 
 

 
 

Contact officer:  Martin Morgans 
Head of Partnerships 

 
Telephone:   (01656)642154 

 
Email:   martin.morgans@bridgend.gov.uk> 
 
Postal address:  Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB 

 
 
Background documents:  
None 

Page 16



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 

23 FEBRUARY 2023 
 

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

REVISED CORPORATE REPORT TEMPLATE 
 
1. Purpose of report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present the proposed revised corporate template for 

reports that are presented to Council, Cabinet and their committees. 
 

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities 
 

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being objective 
under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 

 

 Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community that 
can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. 

 
3. Background 
 
3.1 The Corporate Template is designed to contain the key elements that will aid decision 

makers in assessing the available information and to make informed decisions.  
 
3.2  The template has a common series of headings in a logical sequence that allows the 

reader to progress through any report and locate key information within it.  
 
4. Current situation/proposal 
 
4.1 A desktop review has been undertaken of the current Corporate Report Template 

and it has been recommended that the template be updated to incorporate the Socio-
economic Duty and Welsh Language implications, links to Climate Change and 
Safeguarding as well as an Executive Summary so that the reader and decision 
maker can quickly acquaint themselves with the content of the report.   

 
4.2 Following initial consultation with the Corporate Management Board (CMB) and 

Group Leaders, a blank version of the revised Corporate Report Template is provided 
at Appendix A for information, taking these aspects into consideration together with 
a populated report of a recent Cabinet report attached as an example at Appendix 
B.  

 
4.3 The proposed template also includes the following changes:  
 
 

a) The combining of the ‘Connection to the Corporate Well-being objectives’ with the 
‘Well-being of Future Generations implications’; 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



b) The relocation of the ‘Effect on Policy Framework and Procedure Rules’ to the top 
of the report; 

c) The relocation of the ‘Report Owner/Corporate Director’ and ‘Responsible Officer’ 
details to the top of the report. 

 
4.4 Members are requested to note that Section 5 – ‘Well-being of Future Generations 

implications and connection to Corporate Well-being Objectives’ will be updated 
following the approval by Full Council of the new Wellbeing Objectives within the 
Corporate Plan in March 2023. 

 
4.5 It is proposed that the revised template is used for all reports presented to 

Committees from 18 May 2023 following the Annual Meeting of Council.   
 
4.6 A Bridgenders Message will be circulated to all officers notifying them of the changes 

and the online guidance and template will be updated for all report authors to access. 
 
5. Effect upon Policy Framework& Procedure Rules 
 
5.1  There will be no direct effect on the Policy Framework & Procedure Rules but the 

revised report template will provide a sound basis for decision making, improve 
communication and Corporate working within the Authority and provide greater 
accessibility and understanding the residents of the County Borough.  

 
6.  Equality Act 2010 implications  
 
6.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty 

and the impact on the use of the Welsh language have been considered in the 
preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales, the Council must consider the 
impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions.  It is considered that there will be no significant or 
unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report.  

 
7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 
7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 

report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon 
the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report.  

 
8. Financial implications  
 
8.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.   
 
9. Recommendation 
 
9.1 Members are requested to consider the proposed changes to the Corporate Report 

Template and provide any comment or suggested amendments.  
 
 
R Keepins 
Democratic Services Manager 
October 2022     
 

Page 18



 
 

Contact Officers:  Laura Griffiths 
Group Manager Legal and Democratic Services 
 
Rachel Keepins 
Democratic Services Manager 

 
Telephone:   (01656) 643135 
    (01656) 643159  
 
Email:   Laura.Griffiths@bridgend.gov.uk  
    Rachel.keepins@bridgend.gov.uk 
 
Postal address:  Democratic Services 
    Bridgend County Borough Council 
    Civic Offices 
    Angel Street 
    Bridgend 
    CF31 4WB 

 
Background documents: None. 
 
 
 

Page 19

mailto:Laura.Griffiths@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.keepins@bridgend.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

This part of the report to be completed during the approval process but deleted prior to 
printing or publication on the web.  

Report Approval 
 

Name Date 

Chief Officer   

Cabinet Member (Cabinet reports only)   

Chairperson (Urgent only)   

Legal    

Finance   

 

 
Meeting of:  

 
<COMMITTEE NAME> 

 

 
Date of Meeting:  

 
<COMMITTEE DATE (DD MMM YYY)> 

 

 
Report Title:  

 
<REPORT TITLE> 

 

 
Report Owner / 
Corporate Director:  

 

 
<INSERT TITLE> 

Responsible 
Officer:  

                <NAME & JOB TITLE> 
 
 

Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules:  

 

Executive 
Summary:  
 

<SUMMARY OF THE KEY POINTS SO READERS CAN 
QUICKLY ACQUAINT THEMSELVES WITH THE CONTENT 

OF THE REPORT>  *Bullet points for ease of reference. Max 
word count: 300 

 
1. Purpose of Report  
 
1.1   

 
2. Background  
 
2.1  

 
3. Current situation / proposal  
 
3.1  

 
4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language) 
 
4.1 <link to socio-economic duty, welsh language, equality impact assessments> 
             
*Information / Adminstrative report – EIA not needed  

Page 21



 

The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty and 
the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in the preparation of 
this report. As a public body in Wales the Council must consider the impact of strategic 
decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, strategies, services and 
functions. This is an information report, therefore it is not necessary to carry out an 
Equality Impact assessment in the production of this report. It is considered that there will 
be no significant or unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report.  
 
*EIA screening – no impact identified 
An initial Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) screening has identified that there would be no 
negative impact on those with one or more of the protected characteristics, on socio-
economic disadvantage or the use of the Welsh Language. It is therefore not necessary to 
carry out a full EIA on this policy or proposal.  
 
*EIA screening – negative impact identified 
An initial Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) screening has identified negative impacts on 
those with one or more of the protected characteristics, on socio-economic disadvantage 
or the use of the Welsh Language.  
Insert summary of findings 
A full EIA will be carried out as this strategy, policy or proposal is developed.  
 
*EIA full assessment  
A full equality impact assessment has been carried out as part of the development of this 
strategy, policy or proposal. The full EIA considers the impact of the strategy, policy or 
proposal on the nine protected characteristics, the Socio-economic Duty and the use of the 
Welsh Language.  
*Insert summary of findings 
The full EIA is attached as appendix **.  
 
*  Delete as appropriate 
 

5. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to Corporate 
Well-being Objectives 

 
5.1 <Link to 5 ways of working under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 

and how the proposals contribute to our well-being ojbectives / corporate priorities> 
 
6. Climate Change Implications  
 
6.1 <Link to the importance of decarbonisation to help protect and sustain the 

environment over the long term and in line with our climate change ambitions>.   
 

7. Safeguarding Implications 
 
7.1 <Link to duty under BCBC Safeguarding Policy to safeguard and promote the 

wellbeing of children, young people and adults at risk of abuse or neglect and to 
ensure that effective practices are in place throughout the Council and its 
commissioned services.> 

 
8.  Financial Implications  
 
8.1  

Page 22



 

 
9. Recommendation(s) 

 
9.1  
 
Background documents 
 
<List all relevant documents – anything that is not already in the public domain> 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



 

This part of the report to be completed during the approval process but deleted prior to 
printing or publication on the web.  

Report Approval 
 

Name Date 

Chief Officer   

Cabinet Member (Cabinet reports only)   

Chairperson (Urgent only)   

Legal    

Finance   

 

 
Meeting of:  

 
Cabinet  

 

 
Date of Meeting:  

 
18 October 2022 

 

 
Report Title:  

 
The Provision of Care and Support in the Secure Estate  

 
 

 
Report Owner / 
Corporate Director:  

 

 
Corporate Director Social Services and Wellbeing  

Responsible 
Officer:  

 
Carmel Donovan 

Integrated Community Services Manager 
 
 

Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules:  

There is no effect upon the policy framework or procedure rules.  

Executive 
Summary:  
 

 The Council is required to meet care and support needs of 

all prisoners within HMP Parc Prison.   

 This report seeks approval to transfer the existing care and 

support provisions from G4S Health Services to the 

Council noting the TUPE implications.  

 All current contractual arrangements will need to be 

reviewed and varied.  

 There is an existing £72,790 budget for the G4S contract, 

however the cost of care in the prison can fluctuate year 

on year.   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



 

 
1. Purpose of Report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update Cabinet on the necessity to change the 

arrangements for the care and support for prisoners with eligible needs in HMP Parc, 
in order to meet the Council’s duty to meet need under the Social Services and 
Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014.   

 
1.2 The purpose of the report is also to advise that the Social Services and Wellbeing 

Directorate will be seeking approval from Cabinet:  
 

 to transfer the existing care and support provision currently delivered by G4S 

Health Services (UK) Ltd to the Council noting the TUPE (Transfer of 

Undertakings (Protection of Employment)) transfer of existing G4S staff; 

 to review the existing contractual arrangements with G4S and enter into a 
varied or new agreement.    

 
2. Background  
 
2.1 The Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 came into force on 6 April 2016, 

and accordingly changed the Authority’s responsibilities towards people in prison. 
From 6 April 2016, local authorities have been responsible for assessing and meeting 
the care and support needs of all adults and children in the secure estate while they 
are in custody. This has been a significant change and additional responsibility for 
the Authority as the Act applies equally to those in the secure estate as for those 
individuals in the community. 

 
2.2 Part 11 of the Social Services and Wellbeing Act (Wales) 2014, applies to adults in 

prisons, approved premises, or bail accommodation in Wales (including those over 
18 in youth detention accommodation) and children in youth detention 
accommodation or bail accommodation in England and Wales. For Bridgend County 
Borough Council this has meant providing care and support services to all eligible 
prisoners in HMP Parc, Bridgend. 
 

2.3 The responsibilities for the Authority, as required by the Social Services and 
Wellbeing (Wales) Act, 2014, are as follows: 

 

 Completing care and support assessments for prisoners; 

 Producing care and support plans (with prison and healthcare involvement); 

 Providing care and support services for those with eligible needs; 

 Specialist and moveable items (e.g. walking frames, hoists); 

 When a prisoner is to be released, or transferred to a different prison, to work 
with the local authority that they are moving to, ensuring continuity of care and 
support. 

 
2.4 All offenders over the age of 18 are deemed to have ‘ordinary residence’ status and 

the Council is therefore responsible for meeting the care and support needs of 
individuals with eligible needs.  

 
2.5 The plans of care and support that are currently commissioned by the Council to meet 

the eligible assessed needs of all adults and children in the secure estate are 

Page 26



 

currently provided by G4S Health Services (UK) Ltd.  G4S Health Services (UK) Ltd 
is regulated under the Regulation and Inspection of Social Care (Wales) Act 2016, 
the same statutory framework of all domiciliary care providers in Wales, to deliver the 
social care element of the service in the prison.  Bridgend County Borough Council 
has commissioned this service from G4S Health Services (UK) Ltd and is invoiced 
on a quarterly basis for the care and support provided. The team comprises a 
Registered Manager (who has both health and social care responsibilities) and 10 
posts that provide social care commissioned domiciliary care. 

 
2.6 From December 2022, Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board (CTM UHB) will 

directly provide for the health needs of the prison population in HMP Parc.  However 
there will still be a duty for the social care element to be provided/commissioned 
within the prison.  The UHB cannot provide regulated social care without entering into 
a formal partnership agreement with the Council; and whilst an integrated provision 
remains a desirable potential option for the future, the deadline for the transfer of care 
provider prohibits this option at this time, as it is unlikely the time frame could be 
accomplished as the UHB is not currently a registered care provider for the purposes 
of the Regulation and Inspection of Social Care (Wales) Act.  
 

2.7 The Council is unable to commission an independent domiciliary company to provide 
this care due to the constraints within HMP Parc Prison; and the reason for that 
position was laid out in a previous report to Cabinet on 26 July 2016 which included 
the very high level of vetting required for anyone working in a secure environment. 
The report recognised the difficulties in providing services in the prison setting and 
Cabinet approval was given to approve a waiver under the Contract Procedure Rules 
from the requirement to seek competitive tenders for the provision of care and support 
within HMP Parc on the basis that there was technically only one organisation that 
could deliver the service.   
 

3. Current situation / proposal  
 
3.1 The CTM UHB will take over the provision of all health services in HMP Parc on the 

1 December 2022. 
 
3.2 G4S Health Services have indicated that on terminating their contractual 

arrangements to provide healthcare in HMP Parc, that they do not wish to remain the 
provider of social care and have therefore given the Authority formal notice. 

 
3.3 CTM UHB cannot provide social care services as it is not a registered domiciliary care 

provider in accordance with the Regulation and Inspection of Care (Wales) Act 2016. 
The Council is a registered provider. There may be a future option for the University 
Health Board employed workforce to deliver social care on behalf of integrated 
services under a partnership agreement developed under Part 9 of the Social 
Services and Well-being (Wales) Act (2014) in line with the policy direction for 
integrated services. The UHB and the Council are not in a position to complete the 
necessary collaborative arrangements for an integrated approach within the 
timescales of the transfer of healthcare from G4S Health Services (UK) Ltd to the 
University Health Board. 

 
3.4 The provision of care and support to people in the secure estate has proved to be a 

complex matter to arrange, in terms of the commissioning of services for prisoners 
and meeting the existing regulatory requirements for the provision of domiciliary care 

Page 27



 

in Wales. In addition, the requirements associated with the high level of security at 
HMP Parc means that it is not possible to commission care in the usual way.  

 
3.5 The Council is currently securing approximately 100 hours of care a week and are 

supporting prisoners with a diverse range of needs (e.g. dementia, Huntington’s 
Disease, cancer).  There are many challenges to providing care services in the prison 
environment that would not be the case in the community. For example, access to 
prisoners can be compromised by security priorities, and prison lock down. There are 
limited facilities to support people who are disabled and sick and there is not a 
separate hospital wing whereby prisoners who are particularly unwell or have high 
levels of need, can be constantly monitored. 

 
3.6 A further limiting factor to commissioning and arranging care, is the requirement by 

the Ministry of Justice for enhanced security approval to be able to gain access to the 
prison. Access for outside agency staff would be protracted and not practical, for 
example, staff would need to park in the car park walk to the prison and then complete 
the required security checks. This can take more than 30 minutes, with a similar 
procedure having to be adhered to when leaving the prison.  This process would 
significantly impair the ability of a provider to deliver a timely and flexible response to 
individuals within the prison and could present significant risks to those requiring time 
sensitive calls.   

 
3.7  The security regime of the prison also potentially presents a significant risk to outside 

agencies of not being able to meet their regulatory requirements in regard to ‘missed 
calls’ as there would be a number of outside influences that could prevent an agency 
from attending to a person on time. The delivery of this type of traditional service 
arrangement by independent providers is not an option as it is unlikely to be delivered 
safely. It is for these reason that it is therefore recommended that the support team 
is based permanently within HMP Parc.   

 
3.8 Due to the complexity and restrictions of the prison environment, and for the reasons 

stated above, it is felt unlikely that an outside independent agency would find the 
prospect of providing care and support within the prison attractive; for example they 
may struggle to provide replacement staff due to enhance security clearance required 
when there are unanticipated vacancies, through sickness and absence;  and 
currently their ability to deliver care is further compounded by the shortage of 
domiciliary care workers nationwide. To mitigate this risk the Council will be able to 
seek clearance for a number of staff to provide back up to this team in times of 
planned and unplanned leave. 

 
3.9 For the reasons listed above, it is therefore felt that the only viable option available 

that will enable the Council to meet its statutory duty under the Social Services and 
Wellbeing (Wales) Act, to provide care and support to prisoners in HMP Parc, is for 
the Council to take direct responsibility for the social care service currently provided 
by G4S Health Services (UK) Ltd.  Should Cabinet be in agreement with this proposal, 
the existing contractual arrangements between the Council and G4S will be reviewed.   

 
3.10 Initial discussions have taken place with Human Resources and it is proposed that 

the existing care staff currently employed by G4S would be subject to a TUPE 
(Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment)) transfer to the Council 
allowing the retention of existing knowledge and skills.  The TUPE regulations place 
a legal duty on both the existing employer and the new employer to inform and consult 

Page 28



 

with the affected employees and their representatives / trade unions.  A transfer 
consultation with affected employees together with an analysis of the implications on 
the existing staff structure will take place prior to the agreed date of transfer of the 
work.  The consultation will provide an opportunity for the affected employees to raise 
any issues, find solutions and have the opportunity to input on the decisions.   
 

4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language) 
 
4.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty 

and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in the 
preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales, the Council must consider the 
impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services, and functions. It is considered that there will be no significant or 
unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report, if approval to proceed is 
agreed.  

 
4.2 The proposal to develop a directly delivered care and support team in HMP Parc will 

enable the Council to meet its statutory obligations under the Equality Act and the 
Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act; however failure to discharge the duty to 
deliver care and support to people with protected characteristics, for example those 
who are sick and disabled, could present a potential reputational risk for the Council. 

 
5. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to Corporate 

Well-being Objectives 
 
5.1 The report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being objectives 

under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 
 

1. Supporting a successful sustainable economy – taking steps to make the 
county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study 
and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focussed on raising the skills, 
qualifications and ambitions for all people in the county borough. 

 
2. Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient - taking steps 

to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on the 
Council and its services.  Supporting individuals and communities to build 
resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to have active, healthy and 
independent lives. 

 
3. Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all resources (financial, physical, 

ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 

possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community that 

can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives 

5.2 The implementation of the duties and responsibilities of Part 11 of the Social Services 
and Wellbeing Act (Wales) 2014, for the adult population living within the secure 
estate, in turns supports the promotion of two of the seven goals of the Well-Being of 
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 within the County Borough of Bridgend. That is 
by promoting a healthier Bridgend and Wales, by promoting an environment in the 
secure estate that maximises people’s physical and mental well-being; and 
supporting a more equal Wales for people within the secure estate, supporting them 
to fulfil their potential no matter what their circumstances. 

Page 29



 

 
5.3 The Act provides the basis for driving a different kind of public service in Wales, with 

5 ways of working to guide how the Authority should work to deliver for people.  The 
following is a summary to show how the five ways of working to achieve the well-
being goals have been considered in this report: 

 

 Long Term – There is a challenge in trying to predict and meet the needs of 
people in the longer term in the secure estate, because the population mix 
within the prison is determined by the Ministry of Justice and can change at 
any time. The secure estate population, and service, needs to be kept under 
review to ensure that people can access their rights and entitlements under 
the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act when they are needed. 

 Prevention – the implementation of the Secure Estate Teams Service has 
enabled the Authority to work with individuals providing information advice and 
assistance including life skills and support to people in the prison as well is 
those preparing for a release; this has enabled the Authority to take a 
preventative approach, anticipating future problems for people particularly for 
those who need care and support in the prison and support on release.  

 Integration – The provision of the Authority Secure Estate Team service is 
delivered in partnership with the UHB and G4S and the probation and 
rehabilitation services and supports the maximisation of people’s physical and 
mental well-being.  

 Collaboration – This collaborative approach is managed and monitored 
through the Prison Health and Care Partnership where there is cross sector 
stakeholder representation, and where the pressures and challenges of 
delivering services within the prison are shared and mitigated to deliver the 
best possible intervention within the limitations of delivering services within the 
secure estate. 

 Involvement – from inception there has been a collaborative approach to 
developing the Secure Estate Team; the Authority has worked with public 
bodies collaboratively, in terms of developing the Secure Estate Team Service, 
as well as supporting training on the requirements of the Social Services and 
Wellbeing Act. In addition there has also been considerable engagement with 
prisoners to ensure they understand the role of the service and how to access 
it; this has been achieved through the provision of accessible information, 
advice, and publications for prisoners that have been made available to 
individuals through the prison systems. 

 
6. Climate Change Implications 
 
6.1 There are no direct implications arising from this report.  
 
7. Safeguarding Implications 
 
7.1 The Prison Service Instruction 16/2015 Adult Safeguarding in Prisons effective in 

England and Wales, specifies that prison governors:  
 

 must appoint a functional head with lead responsibility for adult safeguarding 

issues; 

 must have systems in place to protect adult prisoners from abuse and neglect;  

Page 30



 

 must have systems in place for staff, prisoners and others to report suspected 

incidences of abuse or neglect and make them aware of their responsibility to do 

so;  

 must have systems in place to record and respond to reports of suspected 

instances of abuse or neglect, including protecting complainants / reporters from 

victimisation;  

 must ensure that data is collected on all recorded suspected instances of abuse 

or neglect and that analysis of this data informs actions to improve relevant 

practice and procedures; and  

 are encouraged to engage with safeguarding boards - recognising boards as 

fora for the exchange of advice and expertise; a source of advice and 

assistance, likely to be helpful to governors in ensuring prisoners are 

safeguarded effectively. 

7.2 In addition, the Authority has established mechanisms with prison governors setting 
out the arrangements by which the Authority will exercise its duty under section 126 
of the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 regarding an adult at risk.  The 
section 126 duty requires that the Authority, if it has reasonable cause to suspect that 
an adult in its area is an adult at risk as defined by section 126(1), must:  

 

 enquire, or cause enquiries to be made, to enable it to decide whether any action 

should be taken (under the Act or otherwise) and, if so, what and by whom; and  

 decide whether any such action should be taken”. 

 
8. Financial Implications  
 
8.1 The final configuration of the service provision will be determined following the TUPE 

transfer consultation and analysis of the implications on the existing staff structures. 
The service provision will be inclusive of weekends and bank holidays but will not 
include nights because the prison is in lockdown at night, and it is not possible to 
provide overnight services. Any urgent overnight needs are provided by the 
healthcare team, who can access cells with prison guard escorts. 
 

8.2 There is an existing £72,790 budget for the G4S contract, however the cost of care 
in the prison can fluctuate year on year depending on the mix of prisoners at any 
given time in HMP Parc.  Any difference between the final configuration of the service 
provision and the current available budget will be met from within existing Homecare 
budgets within Adult Services.  

 
9. Recommendations 

 
9.1 Note the information contained in this report and the responsibilities for the Council 

under the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014; 
 

9.2 Approve the transfer of the care and support service provision at HMP Parc to the 
Council noting the TUPE implications as outlined at paragraph 4.10; 
 

Page 31



 

9.3 Delegate authority to the Director of Social Services and Wellbeing in consultation 
with the Chief Officer – Legal and Regulatory, Human Resources and Corporate 
Policy and the Section 151 Officer to continue negotiations with G4S and finalise and 
enter into a varied or new agreement with G4S.   

 
 
Background documents: None  

Page 32



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 

23 FEBRUARY 2023 
 

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 
 
1. Purpose of report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present Members with a proposed Forward Work 

Programme (FWP) for the Democratic Services Committee for consideration and 
further development. 
 

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities 
 

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being objective 
under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 

 

 Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community that 
can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. 

 
3. Background 
 
3.1 The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011, Part 1, Chapter 2, requires local 

authorities to appoint a Democratic Services Committee to oversee the Democratic 
Services functions of the Council, ensure that the work is adequately resourced and 
report to the full Council accordingly. 

 
3.2 As stated in the Constitution, the Democratic Services Committee have the following 

functions: 
 

1. To review the adequacy of provision of staff, accommodation, and other 
resources to discharge democratic services functions, and  

2. To make reports and recommendations to Council, at least annually, in relation 
to such provision. 

3. At the request of the Council, review any matter relevant to the support and 
advice available to members of the Council, and the terms and conditions of 
office of those members.  

4. To make reports and recommendations to the Council following a review. 
 
3.3 In addition to this, as a member of the Democratic Services Committee, the role 

includes, (but is not exclusive to): 
 

a) developing the Authority’s member support and development strategy; 

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



b) ensuring that members have access to a reasonable level of training and 
development as described in the member development strategy and the Wales 
Charter for Member Support and Development; 

c) ensuring that the budget for member development is sufficient; 

d) ensuring that members have access to personal development planning and 
annual personal development reviews. 

e) To promote and support good governance by the Council. 

f) To understand the respective roles of members, officers and external parties 
operating within the Democratic Services Committee’s area of responsibility. 

 
4. Current situation/proposal 
 
4.1 Attached at Appendix A is a draft FWP for the Democratic Services Committee for 

the forthcoming year 2023-24. 
 
4.2 Reports such as the Independent Remuneration Panel Wales Draft Annual Report 

and the Committee’s own Annual Report will be regular items for the Committee to 
consider each year.  Similarly with Member Development updates. 

 
4.3 It is for Members to consider whether there are any other items they wish to add to 

their FWP considering the role and remit of the Committee.  This can then be revisited 
at each meeting so that Members have the opportunity to amend or add to the FWP 
throughout the year. 

 
5. Effect upon Policy Framework& Procedure Rules 
 
5.1  There is no effect upon policy framework and procedure rules.   
 
6.  Equality Act 2010 implications  
 
6.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty 

and the impact on the use of the Welsh language have been considered in the 
preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales, the Council must consider the 
impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions.  It is considered that there will be no significant or 
unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report.  

 
7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 
7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 

report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon 
the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report.  

 
8. Financial implications  
 
8.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.   
 
9. Recommendation 

Page 34



 
9.1 Members are requested to consider the proposed draft Forward Work Programme 

for the Democratic Services Committee attached at Appendix A and provide any 
comment or suggestions for further items for the Committee to consider at its future 
meetings. 

 
 
R Keepins 
Democratic Services Manager 
February 2023     
 
Contact Officer: R Keepins 
   Democratic Services Manager   

 
Telephone:  (01656) 643159 
 
E-mail:  Rachel.keepins@bridgend.gov.uk 
 
Postal address:  Democratic Services 

Civic Offices 
   Angel Street  
   Bridgend  
   CF31 4WB  
 
Background documents: None 
 
 

Page 35

mailto:Rachel.keepins@bridgend.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 

 

Date of meeting Item 
 

Invitees/Further Detail 

8 June 2023 
 

DSC Committee Annual Report  

8 June 2023 Member Development 
Programme 

Detail of the results of the 
Member Personal 
Development Reviews 
(PDRs) and consideration of 
future Member Development 

8 June 2023 Councillors Annual Report  To inform the Committee of 
the right of all Councillors to 
produce an Annual Report 

   

26 October 2023 Independent Remuneration 
Panel Wales Draft Annual 
Report 2024/2025 
 

 

   

8 February 2023 
 

Member Development 
Programme Update  

 

 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion
	4 Diweddariad ar y Llwyfan Digidol a'r Porth Aelodau
	5 Templed Adroddiad Corfforaethol Diwygiedig
	3. Appendix A - Corporate Template updated February 2023
	4. Appendix B - Populated Corporate Template

	6 Rhaglen Gwaith i'r Dyfodol y Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd
	6. Appendix A- DSC FWP


